




































 

200 S. Hamilton Rd.  Gahanna, Ohio 43230  
614.342.4010 (Phone)  614.342.4100 (Fax) 

 
May 8, 2020 
 
Shawn McAllister 
3040 Riverside Dr  Suite 225 
Upper Arlington, OH 43221 
 
RE:   Project 4297-4301 Johnstown Rd Variance Comments 
  
Dear Shawn McAllister: 
 
The following comments were generated from the review of the submitted plans and documents for the 
referenced project.   
 

Building 

1. No comments. 
 

Engineering 

2. Engineering has no objection to the requested variance. 
 

Community Development 

3. Informational Comment - As previously mentioned in review of the FDP, staff has no objections to the 
variance request. 

 

Soil & Water Conservation District 

4. No Comment Received.  
 

Public Service 

5. No Comment Received.  
 

Public Safety 

6. No Comment Received.  
 

Parks 
7. No Comment on Variance.  

 

Fire District 
8. No Comment Received.  

 
 
If you have any comments or questions, please contact me at kelly.wicker@gahanna.gov or (614) 342-4025. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kelly Wicker 
Administrative Assistant 



 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT STAFF REPORT 

Request Summary 

Request for final development plan (FDP), design review (DR), and variance approval for a new medical 

office building.  A portion of the property was annexed in 2018 and the property was rezoned in 2019.  

The anticipated use at the time of the annexation and rezoning was medical office. 

The property is zoned Suburban Office and Institutional (SO).  SO permit a variety of professional and 

medical office uses.  The area known as the North Triangle (Morse/Hamilton/Johnstown) has several 

properties with similar zoning and uses.  The land use plan designates the property as Professional 

Office.  The proposed use of the property is consistent with the future land use, zoning, and 

development of adjacent properties. 

A two story building just over 16,000 square feet is proposed on just under three acres of land.  This is a 

relatively low amount of square footage per acre.  This allows for ample open space and parking.  A 

robust landscape plan has been reviewed by staff.  After considerable discussion, there are no staff 

comments related to the proposed plantings. 

One variance has been requested.  The lighting standards of Chapter 1163.06 limit the average intensity 

of light at the parking surface to a maximum of .5 foot candles.  This standard is almost impossible to 

meet while still providing enough lighting to provide pedestrian and vehicular safety.  Thus, a variance 

has been requested to allow for an average of 1.25 foot candles. 

Final Development Plan 

Planning Commission shall approve an FDP application if the following four conditions are met: 

A. The proposed development meets the applicable development standards of this Zoning 

Ordinance. 

B. The proposed development is in accord with appropriate plans for the area. 

C. The proposed development would not have undesirable effects on the surrounding area. 

D. The proposed development would be in keeping with the existing land use character and 

physical development potential of the area. 

 

Design Review 

General review criteria for Design Review applications include the following: 

 Are stylistically compatible with other new, renovated, and existing structures in the applicable 

Design Review District in order to maintain design continuity and provide protection of existing 

design environment. 

 Contribute to the improvement and upgrading of the architectural and design character of the 

Design Review District. 

 Contribute to the continuing economic and community vitality of the Design Review District 

 Maintain, protect and enhance the physical surroundings of the Design Review District. 

 

SO zoned properties are subject to additional design standards of Design Review District 3 (DRD-3).  

Specific standards applicable to this request include the following: 



 

 Brick, stone, cement, decorative aluminum, wood, or other materials that enhance the 

development and create visual interest should be encouraged. 

 Specific colors and color schemes should be designed to ensure universal harmony on all 

commercial developments. 

 Lighting devises should be decorative. 

 Parking area shall add visual interest to the development. 

 

Variance  

Planning Commission shall not grant a variance unless it finds that all of the following conditions apply: 

a) There are special circumstances or conditions applying to the land, building or use referred to in 

the application. 

b) The granting of the variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial 

property rights. 

c) The granting of the application will not materially affect adversely the health or safety of 

persons residing or working in the neighborhood of the proposed use and will not be materially 

detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to property or improvements in such 

neighborhood. 

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the applications as submitted.  The use of the property has been known 

for several years as the Gahanna Community Improvement Corporation (CIC) participated in the 

annexation of the property.  A rezoning and conditional use were also approved.  The proposed use is 

consistent with many other properties in the North Triangle.  Building design, color, and materials are 

also consistent with other developments in the area, most notable is the Emilia School at 1075 E 

Johnstown Rd.    

 

The variance to lighting is one of the most commonly requested variances.  Staff is working on a code 

change to modify this standard to reduce the number of variance requests while protecting adjacent 

properties from light pollution.  Staff supports the variance request. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Location/Zoning Map 

 
 

 

Respectfully Submitted By:  

Michael Blackford, AICP 

City Planner/Zoning Administrator 
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